Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus

Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ar Ragolygon ar gyfer
Dyfodol y Cyfryngau yng Nghymru

Lleoliad: Cynulliad
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - Y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Dyddiad: National
Dydd Mercher, 7 Rhagfyr 2011 VAVSaSIS;“bW for

s C7

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Marc Wyn Jones

Clerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8505
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

1. Ymchwiliad i'r rhagolygon ar gyfer dyfodol y cyfryngau yng
Nghymru

2. (11.00 - 11.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 4)

Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 1

Edwina Hart AC, y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth
Natasha Hale, Pennaeth Diwydiannau Creadigol BMTG

Ron Jones, Cadeirydd Gweithredol Tinopolis CCC

3. Papurau i'w nodi

Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 2 (Tudalennau 5 - 8)

Gohebiaeth rhwng Cadeirydd y Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen a Media Wales

Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 3 (Tudalennau 9 - 12)

Gohebiaeth rhwng Media Wales a Chadeirydd y Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen






Eitem 2

Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 1

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol
Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen ar ddyfodol y Cyfryngau yng Nghymru

Papur tystiolaeth yn cael ei gyflwyno gan y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter,
Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth

Dyddiad: 7 Rhagfyr 2011
Amser: 11.00 -11.30 am

Teitl: Rél y Cyfryngau yn y Diwydiannau Creadigol a Chyfraniad y
Sector Cyfryngau i’'r Economi yng Nghymru

Cyflwyniad

Rwyf wedi cael gwahoddiad i drafod fy marn ynglyn a rél y cyfryngau yn y
diwydiannau creadigol a chyfraniad y sector cyfryngau i economi Cymru gyda
chi.

1. Y Diwydiannau Creadigol yng Nghymru

Mae’r sector diwydiannau creadigol wedi cael ei nodi fel sector blaenoriaeth
gan yr Adran Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth. Mae Llywodraeth
Cymru’n diffinio’r sector fel “y diwydiannau hynny sy’n canolbwyntio ar
greadigrwydd, sgiliau a dawn unigolion ac sydd a'r potensial i greu cyfoeth a
swyddi drwy gynhyrchu a manteisio ar eiddo deallusol.”

Mae’r sector yn cynnwys nifer o is-sectorau, sy’n gweithio mewn cysylltiad
agos &'i gilydd ac sy’n bwysig nid yn unig i economi Cymru ond hefyd i'w
bywyd cymdeithasol a diwylliannol.

Mae fy adran i'n rhoi blaenoriaeth i'r diwydiannau creadigol oherwydd eu
maint yng Nghymru ar hyn o bryd, eu rél bwysig yn yr economi ddigidol, eu
twf diweddar a’r potensial ar gyfer twf yn y dyfodol, yn arbennig yn
niwydiannau’r cyfryngau digidol.

Yn Chwefror 2011, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru ddadansoddiad
ystadegol o ddata economaidd yn ymwneud & phob un o’r sectorau y
rhoddwyd blaenoriaeth iddynt yn Rhaglen Adnewyddu’r Economi. Roedd y
dadansoddiad hwn yn dangos bod y diwydiannau creadigol yn cyflogi dros
30,000 o bobl a’'u bod wedi cynhyrchu trosiant blynyddol o dros £1.8 biliwn yn
2009. Gwelwyd cynnydd o 23% mewn trosiant yn sector diwydiannau
creadigol Cymru rhwng 2005 a 2009, gan ei wneud yn un o’r sectorau sy’n
tyfu gyflymaf yng Nghymru.

2. Rol a Chyfraniad y Sector Cyfryngau yng Nghymru

Tudalen 1




Mae’r sector “cyfryngau” yn torri ar draws nifer o is-sectorau diwydiannau
creadigol - Teledu a Radio, Cyhoeddi, Ffilm a’r Cyfryngau Digidol yn fwyaf
arbennig. Mae wedi gwneud cyfraniad pwysig i'n heconomi ac mae wedi
ehangu’r sylfaen sgiliau ar gyfer y diwydiannau creadigol.

Yn 6l ystadegau Rhaglen Adnewyddu’r Economi ar gyfer 2009, mae'r is-
sectorau hyn gyda’i gilydd yn cynnwys tua 730 o fusnesau yng Nghymru, gan
gynnwys cwmniau darlledu. Maent yn cynhyrchu trosiant o dros £500m y
flwyddyn ac yn cyflogi tua 6,000 o bobl. O ystyried gweithwyr llawrydd a
microfusnesau bach neu fusnesau yn eu dyddiau cynnar nad ydynt wedi cael
eu cofnodi gan fethodoleg Rhaglen Adnewyddu’r Economi, mae’n debyg bod
pwysigrwydd economaidd y sector yn fwy fyth.

Rwy’n ymwybodol o'r heriau sy’n wynebu’r sector cyfryngau yng Nghymru a’r
effaith y mae’r rhain yn ei gael ar draws y sector, o fusnesau preifat fel
papurau newydd a chwmniau cynhyrchu teledu, i'r darlledwyr gwasanaeth
cyhoeddus mawr. Yn ogystal &'r toriadau yng nghyllid BBC Cymru ac S4C,
sydd wedi cael llawer o sylw yn ddiweddar, a’r nifer sylweddol o swyddi sydd
wedi cael eu colli yno yn anffodus, rwy’n bryderus ynglyn a&'r effaith y mae’r
toriadau hyn yn ei gael yn barod ar y sector cynhyrchu annibynnol yng
Nghymru. Rwy’n ymwybodol hefyd o’r heriau aruthrol sy’n wynebu’r
diwydiannau cyhoeddi ac o effeithiau’r rhain ar fusnesau ac ar y gweithlu yng
nghyfryngau print Cymru.

3. Y Blaenoriaethau o Bersbectif Cymreiq

Yr her 'm hadran i yw helpu i gefnogi a diogelu busnesau a swyddi yn'y
cyfryngau traddodiadol ac, ar yr un pryd, helpu busnesau newydd a busnesau
sy’n bodoli’n barod i addasu ac ymateb i'r cyfleoedd masnachol sy’n cael eu
cynnig gan fodelau busnes newydd ar gyfer y cyfryngau, technolegau newydd
a marchnadoedd newydd.

I'r perwyl hwn, mae tim penodol ar gyfer y diwydiannau creadigol a phanel
sector dan gadeiryddiaeth Ron Jones, Cadeirydd Gweithredol Tinopolis CCC,
wedi cael eu sefydlu, i roi cyngor ynglyn &’r polisiau a’r strategaethau y dylai'r
adran roi blaenoriaeth iddynt wrth ddatblygu a gweithredu cymorth i'r sector.

Mae’r panel wedi argymell rhai blaenoriaethau strategol clir a fydd yn arwain
gwaith fy adran ar draws holl is-sectorau’r diwydiannau creadigol, gan
gynnwys y cyfryngau. Gobeithir y bydd y blaenoriaethau hyn yn helpu i roi
cyfeiriad strategol i ddarpariaeth Llywodraeth Cymru ochr yn ochr &’r gwaith o
weithredu’r argymhellion a wnaethpwyd yn adroddiad yr Athro lan
Hargreaves, “Calon Cymru Ddigidol: Adolygiad o’r Diwydiannau Creadigol ar
gyfer Llywodraeth Cynulliad Cymru”. Y blaenoriaethau hyn yw:

1. Canolbwyntio adnoddau ar y busnesau creadigol hynny yng Nghymru

sy’n gwerthu neu’n trwyddedu cynnyrch a gwasanaethau i
farchnadoedd y tu allan i Gymru.

Tudalen 2



Sicrhau bod hyfforddiant ac addysg sy’n berthnasol i'r diwydiannau
creadigol yn cael eu cysylltu ag anghenion busnesau a’r economi
ddigidol.

Defnyddio dylanwad y Llywodraeth i gael cymaint ag sy’n bosibl o
gefnogaeth o Ewrop a’r DU i'r sector creadigol yng Nghymru, gan
sicrhau bod prosiectau sy’n cael arian o safon uchel ac yn gydnaws a’r
blaenoriaethau strategol.

Cyflymu twf busnesau cyfryngau digidol yng Nghymru.

Cynyddu’r effaith y mae caffael sector cyhoeddus yn ei gael ary
diwydiannau creadigol yng Nghymru.

Sicrhau bod Darlledwyr Gwasanaeth Cyhoeddus Cymru’n trefnu eu
materion er mwyn darparu’r manteision economaidd mwyaf y gellir eu
cyflawni’n ymarferol i Gymru.

Monitro gweithgarwch economaidd yn y sector yng Nghymru er mwyn
galluogi polisi i addasu mewn amgylchedd sy’n newid yn gyflym.

Drwy’r cyngor sy’n cael ei gynnig gan banel y sector a’r tim creadigol mae fy
adran bellach wedi sefydlu’r mecanweithiau priodol i roi cefnogaeth briodol i'r

sector.

4. Beth mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n ei Wneud?

Mae gweithgareddau presennol fy adran i gefnogi’'r sector cyfryngau’n
cynnwys:

1.

Rhoi cymorth ariannol i gwmniau cynhyrchu o Gymru i gynhyrchu
rhaglenni ar gyfer comisiynau rhwydwaith a chydgynyrchiadau
rhyngwladol.

Treialu Cronfa Datblygu Digidol newydd sbon sydd &'r nod penodol o
gynorthwyo busnesau yn y cyfryngau, a’r sector creadigol ehangach, i
wneud y gorau o’u syniadau creadigol drwy lwyfannau digidol ac mewn
marchnadoedd rhyngwladol.

Ceisio ysgogi cymaint ag sy’n bosibl o werth economaidd gan y
darlledwyr gwasanaeth cyhoeddus, drwy weithio gyda hwy er mwyn
cynyddu eu comisiynu rhwydwaith gan gwmniau o Gymru a’u cyfraniad
economaidd ehangach i Gymru, a thrwy wneud gwaith ymchwil a
dadansoddi a fydd yn sail i bolisiau a strategaethau a fydd yn cael eu
datblygu yn y dyfodol gan y Llywodraeth, y BBC, S4C a darlledwyr
eraill.

Cwblhau dadansoddiad llawn o drefniadau caffael gwasanaethau
cyfryngau yn y sector cyhoeddus drwy Gymru gyfan ac edrych sut 'y

Tudalen 3



gallwn helpu cwmniau sy’n ymwneud &'r cyfryngau yng Nghymru i gael
cyfran fwy o’r contractau sy’n cael eu cynnig.

. Ymgynghori & chwmniau blaenllaw yn y diwydiannau cyfryngau digidol
yng Nghymru, er mwyn nodi’r ffactorau sy’n dylanwadu ar dwf a
datblygu mecanweithiau priodol i gefnogi’r diwydiannau hyn.

. Comisiynu rhagor o ymchwil i fapio’r diwydiannau creadigol yng
Nghymru, gan gynnwys dadansoddiad manylach o weithgaredd
llawrydd a microfusnesau nad ydynt yn cael eu cynrychioli’n llawn yn
ystadegau presennol Rhaglen Adnewyddu’r Economi.

. Dal i geisio adeiladu Gwasanaeth Lleoliadau Cymru (Comisiwn Sgrin
Cymru) fel gwasanaeth cryf, yn canolbwyntio ar agweddau
economaidd, a all gefnogi cynyrchiadau teledu a ffilm sy’n
mewnfuddsoddi, ac a fydd hefyd yn helpu busnesau lleol a gweithwyr
llawrydd i gael cyfleoedd newydd.

Tudalen 4



Eitem 3a
Media(4)-05-11 : Paper 2

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a
Llywodraeth Leol

Communities, Equality and Local Government

Committee

Alan Edmunds Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay
Managing Director Caerdydd / Cardiff
Media Wales CF99 1NA
Six Park Street,

Cardiff

CF10 1XR. 21 November 2011
Dear Alan

Task and Finish Group on the media in Wales

Thank you for agreeing to attend the inquiry meeting on 1 December to give oral
evidence on behalf of Media Wales and Trinity Mirror.

In its meeting on 17 November the Task and Finish Group agreed that | should
write to you to seek clarification on a number of points in advance of your
attendance.

Members of the Task and Finish Group have provided a number of questions, and |
would be grateful if you would provide us, via the Clerk, with written answers to
the following questions by 29 November.

1. According to Dr Andy Williams' projection, if the circulation decline of the
Western Mail continues at the current rate, no-one will be left buying the paper in
10 years’ time. Do you accept this projection as accurate?

2. How much longer, in your view, will the Western Mail be published as a daily
paper?

3. When the NUJ referred to speculation that the Western Mail could be turned
into a weekly paper, a statement from Trinity Mirror said there were no plans to

make such a change. Under what circumstances could such a change take place?
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’'r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh
Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol / Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
Gwasanaeth y Pwyllgorau / Committee Service
Ffon / Tel : 029 2089 8429
Ebost / Email : Communities.Equality&LocalGov@wales.gov.uk

Tudalen 5



How low would the Western Mail's circulation have to fall before such a change was
considered?

4, What plans, if any, does Trinity Mirror have to halt circulation decline in its
Media Wales titles?

5. Does the Trinity Mirror board accept the argument that having a national
daily newspaper is an essential requirement of Welsh democracy?

6. On November 17, following the announcement of job cuts and title closures
at Birmingham, Trinity Mirror said it had offered the relevant titles for sale before
making the closure announcement. Does this indicate a change of policy by the
group, which has previously refused to offer titles it intends to close for sale?

7. Are you able to give a guarantee on behalf of Trinity Mirror that Media Wales
titles would be offered for sale if at any future stage there was a plan to close them
or, for example, to turn the Western Mail into a weekly - and that a reasonable
period of time would be allowed before such a plan would be implemented?

8. How have redundancies in the newspaper sales and marketing departments
affected the company's ability to maximise circulation?

9. The Western Mail styles itself the national newspaper of Wales. Yet there are
parts of Wales where it is not easy to buy the paper. Why is that the case? Does
Trinity Mirror have a policy of not wanting to promote the Western Mail in North
Wales in order to protect the Daily Post?

10. The NUJ has told us that since 1999, Trinity Mirror has had more than £161m
in pre-tax profits from Media Wales. What has happened to the money, and how
much of it has been invested in Wales? How does Trinity Mirror justify the very high
profit margins nudging 40% enjoyed at Media Wales until quite recently? Was it
irresponsible to achieve such results through cuts in editorial and other staff?

11. The NUJ and Dr Andy Williams were very critical of Sly Bailey's level of
remuneration - last year it was more than £1.7m - describing it as obscene and a
reward for failure. Given the performance of the group in terms of circulation,
revenue, numbers employed and share price since she became chief executive, do
you agree that they have a point?

12. Does Trinity Mirror accept that it was a serious strategic error to give away
virtually the entire contents of its newspapers free online? Other newspapers do not
publish virtually all their content free online and there appears to be evidence that
circulation decline is less as a result. Does Trinity Mirror have any plans to change
policies in this respect, and if not, why not?

Tudalere 6



13. Shortly after Sly Bailey took over as chief executive, she said the aim was to
have 20% of advertising revenue from digital within a short space of time. Why has
that ambition not been realised?

14. Why is the circulation decline of the Western Mail so much more marked than
that of the Daily Post?

15. What were the factors that led to the editorial redundancies at Media Wales
announced in July 20117

16. What was the difference between the company's expected and actual
revenues in the first six months of 2011?

17. In the spring of this year, Trinity Mirror announced its intention to make
£25m in savings this year. What was the level of savings sought by Trinity Mirror
from Media Wales? What degree of leeway was Media Wales given in terms of the
level of cuts to be made? How did you decide where to impose the cuts?

18. From past experience, it is quite likely that Trinity Mirror will announce its
intention to make further savings of a similar magnitude next spring. What cuts
would you envisage making at that time? The NUJ has suggested that further cuts
would be likely to entail title closures. Do you agree?

19. Given declining circulation and the recent cut in the number of journalists
working in the Celtics' (weekly papers) district offices, how do you see the titles'
short to medium term future?

20. Do you accept that closing down local newspaper offices has a negative
impact on circulation - and that the closure of offices in Neath, Aberdare and Ebbw
Vale had such an impact?

21. When you gave evidence to an earlier Assembly inquiry in 2009, you said
space would be taken for “reporters' surgeries” in towns where offices had been
shut. Has this happened, and if not, why not?

22. Do you believe 10 journalists, now reduced to nine, five of them trainees, can
adequately cover the geographically distinct areas which represent the seven Celtic
weeklies? If so, what commitment can you give to minimum levels of coverage of
courts, crime and local government, the traditional cornerstones of good weekly
papers? How are those areas - and others - meant to be covered properly when
half the available staff are trainees and some (if not all) of them live in Cardiff? How
much time is made available for journalists in the Valleys to get out and about,
discover their patch and get to know and make proper local contacts?

Tudalen 7



23. Do you agree that generic copy shared across several titles ultimately
contributes to killing the identity of individual papers and aggravates further the
issue of declining circulation?

24. Given the higher than average number of Valleys homes without an internet
connection, if weekly titles are closed, is there not an increased danger of people
becoming disenfranchised through a lack of distinct local news about their area?
Also, given the readership demographics of Media Wales' titles, if older readers
abandon the papers, is it not highly unlikely that they would be replaced by
younger ones?

25. Are Trinity Mirror's policies in Wales contributing towards a growing
democratic deficit and how does that square with the group's alleged commitment
to the communities its papers serve? Who should be held to account for Trinity
Mirror's actions in Wales since 2003?

26. Do you agree with the view that Trinity Mirror's business model (particularly
in relation to its Welsh titles) is no longer fit for purpose? What, apart from more
cuts, does Trinity Mirror's future business strategy consist of? What policies for
growth does it have?

27. Given that Media Wales submitted a bid for National Assembly money to
produce a Welsh language news website, the company is presumably not averse to
the idea of accepting public funds for news provision. Can you envisage a future in
which newspapers like the Western Mail could only survive with some form of
public subsidy?

We look forward to receiving your responses, and hope that this information will
inform a productive evidence session.

Please do not hesitate to contact the Clerk of the Committee, Marc Jones (029 20
898505), should you have any further queries.

Yours sincerely

Ken Skates AM
Chair, Task and Finish Group on the future of the media in Wales

Tudalent 8



oy,

¢J

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

Media(4)-05-11 : Paper 3 E ite m 3 b

29 November 2011

Ken Skates AM

Chair

Task & Finish Group on the future of the media in Wales
Communities, Equality & Local Government Committee
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff CF99 1NA

Dear Ken,

Please find below our responses to your questions:

1

According to Dr Andy Williams' projection, if the circulation decline of the Western
Mail continues at the current rate, no-one will be left buying the paper in 10 years’
time. Do you accept this projection as accurate?

No. This is simplistic, unscientific analysis of the newspaper market and we wouldn'’t
comment on such speculation.

How much longer, in your view, will the Western Mail be published as a daily
paper?
We have no plans to stop publishing the Western Mail as a daily paper.

When the NUJ referred to speculation that the Western Mail could be turned into a
weekly paper, a statement from Trinity Mirror said there were no plans to make
such a change. Under what circumstances could such a change take place? How
low would the Western Mail's circulation have to fall before such a change was
considered?

As per our previous answer, we have absolutely no plans to stop publishing the Western
Mail as a daily paper.

What plans, if any, does Trinity Mirror have to halt circulation decline in its Media
Wales titles?

It is part of our normal business practice to have detailed plans and strategies to promote
the sales of our newspapers.

Does the Trinity Mirror board accept the argument that having a national daily
newspaper is an essential requirement of Welsh democracy?

Trinity Mirror understands the important role the Western Mail plays in Welsh life and is
determined to ensure it constantly provides the best possible service to readers and
advertisers.

On November 17, following the announcement of job cuts and title closures at
Birmingham, Trinity Mirror said it had offered the relevant titles for sale before
making the closure announcement. Does this indicate a change of policy by the
group, which has previously refused to offer titles it intends to close for sale?
We've done this a number of times and there is no’policy’ as such - it very much depends
on the market place.

Media Wales Limited
Six Park Street Cardiff CF10 1XR
tel: 029 2022 3333 www.walesonline.co.uk

Tu d al e n 9 Registered Office: One Canada Square,

i : Canary Wharf, London E14 5AP
Tl'lﬂlty Mirror | Registered No. 46946 England & Wales



7

10

11

12

13

-

Are you able to give a guarantee on behalf of Trinity Mirror that Media Wales titles
would be offered for sale if at any future stage there was a plan to close them or, for
example, to turn the Western Mail into a weekly — and that a reasonable period of
time would be allowed before such a plan would be implemented?

This is a hypothetical question. We have no plans to close or sell the Western Mail or to
turn it into a weekly paper.

How have redundancies in the newspaper sales and marketing departments
affected the company's ability to maximise circulation?

We have introduced new structures and systems as part of the changes we have made
which allow our marketing and newspaper sales functions to work more efficiently.

The Western Mail styles itself the national newspaper of Wales. Yet there are parts
of Wales where it is not easy to buy the paper. Why is that the case? Does Trinity
Mirror have a policy of not wanting to promote the Western Mail in North Wales in
order to protect the Daily Post?

Throughout its history, as now, the Western Mail has sold more copies in south and west
than in north Wales. There is no policy of not wanting to promote it because of the Daily
Post. The papers serve very different market segments.

The NUJ has told us that since 1999, Trinity Mirror has had more than £161m in pre-
tax profits from Media Wales. What has happened to the money, and how much of it
has been invested in Wales? How does Trinity Mirror justify the very high profit
margins nudging 40% enjoyed at Media Wales until quite recently? Was it
irresponsible to achieve such results through cuts in editorial and other staff?

As a plc, all our relevant financial details can be found in one of the four financial reporting
announcements we make throughout the year - the Prelim results in March, the Interims
Results in August and either of the Interim Management Statements, in May or November
— or in the Trinity Mirror Annual Report.

The NUJ and Dr Andy Williams were very critical of Sly Bailey's level of
remuneration — last year it was more than £1.7m — describing it as obscene and a
reward for failure. Given the performance of the group in terms of circulation,
revenue, numbers employed and share price since she became chief executive, do
you agree that they have a point?

We're not going to comment on the NUJ's anecdotal opinions.

Does Trinity Mirror accept that it was a serious strategic error to give away virtually
the entire contents of its newspapers free online? Other newspapers do not publish
virtually all their content free online and there appears to be evidence that
circulation decline is less as a result. Does Trinity Mirror have any plans to change
policies in this respect, and if not, why not?

Our online approach has seen the creation of WalesOnline from scratch to become the
biggest commercial news website in Wales, the only major alternative to the BBC Wales
online news channel. This is a very significant success story for Wales.

In addition, this debate is being played out across the media world: the issue of if, how
and when to charge for online content. Trinity Mirror has consistently stated that there are
no plans to begin charging for general online news content, although there may be scope
for charging for specialist content in some cases.

Shortly after Sly Bailey took over as chief executive, she said the aim was to have
20% of advertising revenue from digital within a short space of time. Why has that
ambition not been realised?

As a plc, all our relevant financial details can be found in one of the four financial reporting
announcements we make throughout the year - the Prelim results in March, the Interims
Results in August and either of the Interim Management Statements, in May or November
— or in the Trinity Mirror Annual Report.

Tudalen 10



14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

g .

Why is the circulation decline of the Western Mail so much more marked than that
of the Daily Post?
The papers serve very different market segments and as such are affected differently by
market conditions.

What were the factors that led to the editorial redundancies at Media Wales
announced in July 20117

These changes were part of new, more efficient systems of workings introduced as we
constantly seek to optimise our resources in very challenging market conditions.

What was the difference between the company's expected and actual revenues in
the first six months of 20117

As a plc, all our relevant financial details can be found in one of the four financial reporting
announcements we make throughout the year - the Prelim results in March, the Interims
Results in August and either of the Interim Management Statements, in May or November
— or the Trinity Mirror Annual Report.

In the spring of this year, Trinity Mirror announced its intention to make £25m in
savings this year. What was the level of savings sought by Trinity Mirror from
Media Wales? What degree of leeway was Media Wales given in terms of the level
of cuts to be made? How did you decide where to impose the cuts?

Media Wales devises its business plans based on its budgeted revenues, costs and
objectives.

From past experience, it is quite likely that Trinity Mirror will announce its intention
to make further savings of a similar magnitude next spring. What cuts would you
envisage making at that time? The NUJ has suggested that further cuts would be
likely to entail title closures. Do you agree?

Again, we wouldn’'t comment on hypotheses and speculation, but, as ever, if we had any
plans our staff would be the first to know.

Given declining circulation and the recent cut in the number of journalists working
in the Celtics' (weekly papers) district offices, how do you see the titles' short to
medium term future?

All of our actions are designed to give these the titles a sustainable and profitable future.

Do you accept that closing down local newspaper offices has a negative impact on
circulation — and that the closure of offices in Neath, Aberdare and Ebbw Vale had
such an impact?

These offices were closed a number of years ago and the reasons and background to this
were explained when we attended the previous media inquiry in 2009.

When you gave evidence to an earlier Assembly inquiry in 2009, you said space
would be taken for “reporters' surgeries” in towns where offices had been shut.
Has this happened, and if not, why not?

This did not prove an effective strategy for us in terms of the best use of our resources to
provide the best possible papers for the communities.

Do you believe 10 journalists, now reduced to nine, five of them trainees, can
adequately cover the geographically distinct areas which represent the seven Celtic
weeklies? If so, what commitment can you give to minimum levels of coverage of
courts, crime and local government, the traditional cornerstones of good weekly
papers? How are those areas - and others - meant to be covered properly when half
the available staff are trainees and some (if not all) of them live in Cardiff? How
much time is made available for journalists in the Valleys to get out and about,
discover their patch and get to know and make proper local contacts?

Our team of journalists in our district offices and multimedia newsroom in Cardiff are
managed in the most effective way possible to produce the best possible newspapers.

Tudalen 11



—4—

23 Do you agree that generic copy shared across several titles ultimately contributes
to killing the identity of individual papers and aggravates further the issue of
declining circulation?

The shared copy across the titles is in addition to specific ultra-local content, not at the
expense of it. We expect to introduce even more ultra local copy next year.

24 Given the higher than average number of Valleys homes without an internet
connection, if weekly titles are closed, is there not an increased danger of people
becoming disenfranchised through a lack of distinct local news about their area?
Also, given the readership demographics of Media Wales' titles, if older readers
abandon the papers, is it not highly unlikely that they would be replaced by
younger ones?

We believe it is important for the future of the business that as well as serving newspaper
readers in these communities that we also deliver local content online, which we will
continue to develop.

25 Are Trinity Mirror's policies in Wales contributing towards a growing democratic
deficit and how does that square with the group's alleged commitment to the
communities its papers serve? Who should be held to account for Trinity Mirror's
actions in Wales since 20037
We are committed to serving our readers and advertisers in Wales in the best possible
fashion and have regular dialogue with our stakeholders to this end.

26 Do you agree with the view that Trinity Mirror's business model (particularly in
relation to its Welsh titles) is no longer fit for purpose? What, apart from more cuts,
does Trinity Mirror's future business strategy consist of? What policies for growth
does it have?

We are continually reviewing the business and all of our actions are designed to give our
portfolio in Wales a sustainable and profitable future. The changes we have made across
the business in recent years are all made with the best interests of our newspapers and
websites at heart, within the context of the most difficult trading conditions in living
memory.

27 Given that Media Wales submitted a bid for National Assembly money to produce a
Welsh language news website, the company is presumably not averse to the idea of
accepting public funds for news provision. Can you envisage a future in which
newspapers like the Western Mail could only survive with some form of public
subsidy?

While we believe that the independence of commercial regional publishers is vital, as
demonstrated by our bid for the Welsh language news website, we have an open mind to
projects which involve public funds for news provision.

Yours sincerely,

Alan Edmunds
Managing Director, Media Wales Ltd
Editor, Western Mail

Tudalen 12



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i'r rhagolygon ar gyfer dyfodol y cyfryngau yng Nghymru
	3a Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 2
	3b Media(4)-05-11 : Papur 3

